HRVDM/HDV

Questions and Answers

1. What is the budgeted value for this work? Is the independent government estimate complete?   Does the independent government estimate fall within the budgeted value? 

· Answer:  An Independent Government Estimate (IGE) was completed for this project.  However, that information is considered source selection sensitive and will not be released to industry.  

2. Is the budget approved? 

· Answer:  There is no FY04 funding approved for this effort.  Contract award is contingent upon availability of funds starting in FY05. 

3. If the budget is not approved (authorized/appropriated), what is NASA's plan for contract award? 

· Answer:   See answer to question no. 2

4. Is there an OCI between this work and future solicitations to support other HST mission components (e.g. portions of the ejection module)? 

· Answer:  At this time an OCI is not anticipated.  However, the Government reserves the right to revisit this issue upon the determination of an acquisition strategy for components of the Ejection Module.

5. What are the OCI restrictions with regards to current HST contractors? 

· Answer:  Current HST Contractors have submitted OCI mitigation plans which the Government has reviewed.  These plans provide programmatic separation between the current HST contractor personnel and the proposing organization for purposes of this procurement.

6. Is there NASA provided equipment or facilities (e.g. rendezvous sensors, docking hardware, office space at GSFC, etc.)? We have been unable to locate the appropriate table. 

· Answer:  See Model contracts.  HRVDM and HDV contract clause G.8 and G.9 entitled "List of Government Furnished Property" and "Installation Accountable Government Property", respectively. 

7. It is unclear in section M how NASA intends to evaluate the Research and Development effort associated with automated rendezvous. Please clarify for both mission suitability and cost. 

· Answer:  Both the HRVDM and HDV supplemental instructions and criteria state that the offeror’s scope, detail and quality of key trades and IRAD results will be evaluated for soundness and completeness, along with the risk mitigation benefit.  

8. It is unclear how NASA will evaluate the proposed utilization of hardware/software/processes for current technology demonstration projects such as XSS-11, Orbital Express, and DART. Please clarify. 

· Answer:  The Government will evaluate the proposed use of such existing technologies in determining whether the Contractor overall proposal meets the requirement for TRL 6. 

9.  Developing the required ICD for the DM to EM interface requires many assumptions with regards to the EM a. Current HST contractors will have an unfair competitive advantage (assuming they are supporting or have supported the concept definition work). How will NASA level the playing field?  b. How will NASA evaluate the bidder's allocations between the DM vs. EM when the EM definition/configuration is currently a moving target?

· Answer:   a) See response to question 5. b) The HRVDM contractor provides the allocations in the DM to EM ICD as defined in section A.2 of the SOW to achieve the mission as defined in section A.1 of the SOW.  As stated in Section L, Mission Suitability Subfactor B, “Interfaces”, offerors shall provide the preliminary EM to DM ICD as part of their proposal, and this shall be evaluated for maturity and for degree to which it reduces the HRV complexity and enhances the HRV system performance, commonality, testability, and operability.

10. Development of the required level of proposal data for the DM requires knowledge of the EM configuration. An example of this is the requirement to support 4 docking/berthing attempts. Since thrusters will be provided by the EM, the characteristics of these thrusters must be known for propellant mass estimates, control circuit numbers, etc. How will the bidders have access to the standards to be used for the proposal? 

· Answer:  The HRVDM contractor provides the allocations in the DM to EM ICD as defined in section A.2 of the SOW to achieve the mission as defined in section A.1 of the SOW.   In your example, the offerors defines (in the ICD) the actuator performance and configuration to meet the mission requirements.

11.  What are the provisions for or restrictions on use of foreign components, sub-contractors, or prime contractors? 

· Answer:  There are no additional restrictions on the use of foreign components, subcontractors or prime contractors other than those currently required by law or regulation.  

12.  How will NASA cost evaluate bidder's use of other NASA facilities to support this effort? 

· Answer:  The Government will follow the procedures under provision K.15 entitled "USE OF GOVERNMENT-OWNED PROPERTY (1852.245-79) (JUL 1997)".

13.  Can embedded movies be submitted in the electronic proposal file? 

· Answer:  No.

14. Is a Launch Vehicle (LV) cost required with the HST Robotic Vehicle De-orbit Module cost proposal or will NASA provide the launch vehicle price through the launch service provider? (Reference M.3-2.b File .007) 

· Answer:    The launch vehicle cost is not required with either cost proposal.  The Government will include its price for the proposed launch vehicle in the probable cost of the HDV.

15. Section L.9 IV states that there is a 50-page limit on BOE’s. After reading the RFP section on BOE, there is still clarification requested.  Will NASA define what is to be included in the page count (cost methodology, labor hour justification, etc…)? 

· Answer:  All information provided in support of the BOE will be included in the page count.

16. HRVDM SOW Section 7.2 (p. 32) states that DRD SW-01 and DRD SW-02 shall be delivered with the proposal.  The DILS states SW-01 and SW-02 are due on contract award +10 days.  Which document is correct? 

· Answer:  The DILS is correct, the above DRDs are due at contact award + 10 days.  An amendment to the RFP will be issued to correct the above section in the SOW.

17. The definition of SRR and PDR in the RFP appears to be at a top-level definition.  Is there another source of definitions NASA wishes the contractors to use for these Program Reviews?  Can more specific definition of what is required be provided? 

· Answer:  There is no other source to be used for the definition of these reviews.  Additional guidance will be posted on the WEB at http://hubble.gsfc.nasa.gov/robotic-servicing.html )
18. SE-05 is required 30 days prior to SRR.  Thus, SE-05 is due at ATP, is this interpretation correct? (reference HRVDM and HDV DILS) 

· Answer:  Yes

19. SE-06 and SW-18 are required 30 days prior to PDR.  Thus, SE-06 and SW-18 are due at SRR, is this interpretation correct? (reference HRVDM and HDV DILS) 

· Answer:  Yes

20. Please clarify GN&C-21 Requirements Specification due at ATP + 60 days (PDR) with an update at SRR.  Are these review requirements in the proper order? 

· Answer:  No. The requirement is to have a preliminary version at SRR and final at PDR. An amendment to the RFP will be issued to correct the above requirement. 

21. HST drawings on the HRV web site are provided. Can the Parts Lists for the drawings also be provided to bidders? 

· Answer:   No, part list for drawings are not required for the proposal.

22.  Clarification on Flight Software Requirements Level in HRVDM and HDV Documents (Attachment B).  Are the requirements specified at Level II and III? 

· Answer:   Yes, Section 5.0 specifies Level II and III software requirements

23. The HRVDM specification indicates that there are three levels of requirements (and two levels in the HDV specification).  Is there a DM requirements II to III to IV traceability matrix (and a corresponding DV matrix) available?  If so, will this be made available to bidders prior to proposal submittal? 

· Answer:  No.   

24. HRVDM Requirements Document, Section 6.3.5.2.1, refers to a section (6.3.3.6.4.2.3) that appears to be missing. 

· Answer:  Reference should be to Section 6.3.3.6.5.1.  Within Section 6.3.3.6.5.1, the reference to Table 6-3 “Aft Bulkhead and Berthing Pin Allowable Loads“ should be to Table 3-18 “AB Berthing Pin Capability“.  This will be a global change for any reference to Table 6-3.  An amendment to the RFP will be issued to correct the above. 

25.  Who is responsible for launch vehicle IRDs and ICDs? 

· Answer:   NASA will be responsible for these documents.

26. HRVDM and HDV Requirements Documents.  Please provide an explanation of connection to DBA2s (including P105 and P106 connectors). 

· Answer:   A description paper on the HST Electrical Power System (EPS) will be made available.  The document will be posted on the WEB at http://hubble.gsfc.nasa.gov/robotic-servicing.html ) 

27. HRVDM Requirements Document, Attachment B, p. 41, Section 3.3.1.2 discusses capture and docking solutions.  Are there three separate capture modes required:  1) Primary (grapple fixtures - 3.3.1.2.1), 2) Alternate (Aft Bulkhead FSS berthing pins – 3.3.1.2.2), and Backup (trunnion pins or keel fitting – 3.3.1.2.3) or are just two different means to capture and dock that can be two of these three options? 

· Answer:   The requirement is to have two independent means of capture to any of the specified HST interfaces in 3.3.1.2. Docking must be to the Aft Bulkhead FSS berthing pins as defined in 3.3.1.2.2

28. Direct docking is not mentioned as an alternate or backup option in Section 3.3.1.2 of HRVDM Requirements Document.  Does GSFC recommend not performing direct docking to the aft bulkhead as an alternate or backup solution? 

· Answer:   No. Direct docking as an alternate or backup solution is allowed.

29. To assist in development of computer math models, clarification on the planned NASA use of these models is requested. What is the planned use of the required computer math model deliverables?  Is there a preference regarding discrete or probabilistic models? 

· Answer:   Either model is acceptable, however, for information purposes the Hubble program uses discreet models at mission level.

30. HDV Requirements Document Attachment B Range Rate Redundancy Section 3.2.1.4 states “HDV shall redundantly acquire range, range rate, and orientation data using two different types of sensor systems during the proximity operations and capture mission phases”.  Section 4.1.4.2 “Navigation” states “HDV shall provide overlapping range and orientation data coverage from 100m to 2m and a minimum of one sensor down to 0.1m.  Clarification of the relative navigation sensor redundancy requirement is requested. 

· Answer:   The requirement is to have two different types of sensors both having redundancy. Both sensors must be capable of range and orientation measurements at ranges from 100m down to 2m.  At least one sensor must provide (with redundancy) range and orientation measurements down to a range of 0.1m

31.  What are the assumed annual funding profiles for HRVDM and HDV? 

· Answer:  There is no assumed funding profile. 

32. Referencing HRVDM Requirements Document, Section 14.0 “Mission Operations”: what is meant by “The contractor shall support all operational phases of HRVDM” (what roles are envisioned for contractor support). We assume the DM will be operated and controlled by the government versus the contractor or an integrated team during launch, servicing and post-servicing operations.  Is this correct interpretation? 

· Answer:   Operated and controlled by the government with support provided by the contractor as an integrated team

33. Referencing HRV Requirements Document, Section 14.0 “Mission Operations”: what is meant by “The contractor shall support all operational phases of HDV” (what roles will the contractor support). We assume that the DM will be operated and controlled by the government, versus a contractor or integrated team. Is this correct interpretation? 

· Answer:   Operated and controlled by the government with support provided by the contractor, as an integrated team.

34.  WBS document (#NNG0461779R, Attachment F; HRVDM Attachment F(WBS).doc) and pricing worksheet (110187-SOL-001-011.xls).  Clarifications and Questions:
Pricing worksheet does not include WBS element 3.4 – Communications on the ‘EX – 11  WBS 3.0’ tab; element is included in the WBS document. The ‘EX – 11 WBS 6.0’ tab of the pricing worksheet includes element 5.7 – DM Module Thermal Testing (row 236).  It is believed that this is a duplicate entry from the previous tab (‘EX – 11 WBS 5.0’) and does not belong on the WBS 6.0 tab. The ‘EX – 11 WBS 11.0’ tab of the pricing worksheet includes element 8.3.2 – DM Simulators (row 140).  It is believed that this is a duplicate entry from the element 8.0 tab (‘EX – 11 WBS 8.0’) and does not belong on the WBS 11.0 tab. 

· Answer:  Ex-11 WBS 3.0 should include WBS element 3.4 – Communications as per Contract attachment F.  The other entries as described above are duplicate entries that should be deleted.   A revised cost spreadsheet will be made available upon issuance of an amendment.  However, offerors are advised that they are allowed to make the necessary changes to match their individual approach to meeting the Government's requirement and to comply with the requirements of the RFP.

35.  WBS document (#NNG0461779R (HDV), Attachment F; HDV Attachment F(WBS).doc) and pricing worksheet (110187-SOL-001-012.xls).  Clarifications and Questions: Pricing worksheet does not include WBS element 3.4 – Communications on the ‘EX – 11  WBS 3.0’ tab; element is included in the WBS document. The ‘EX – 11 WBS 6.0’ tab of the pricing worksheet includes element 5.7 – DM Module Thermal Testing (row 236).  It is believed that this is a duplicate entry from the previous tab (‘EX – 11 WBS 5.0’) and does not belong on the WBS 6.0 tab. Row 464 of the pricing worksheet does not identify an element number for ‘Government Insight and Support of Government FSW Development’. It is believed that this should be identified as WBS Element 7.4 (per the WBS document). 

· Answer:    Ex-11 WBS 3.0 should include WBS element 3.4 – Communications as per Contract attachment F.  The other entries as described above are duplicate entries that should be deleted.   A revised cost spreadsheet will be made available upon issuance of an amendment.  However, WBS element 7.4 Government Insight and Support of Government FSW Development was included but not properly labeled.  Offerors are advised that they are allowed to make the necessary changes to match their individual approach to meeting the Government's requirement and to comply with the requirements of the RFP.

36.  Attachment A, 1.0 Project Management page 12, Monthly status reports (DRD PM-02). What is the difference between this DRD v.s Monthly CPR (DRD PM-08)? IBR is stated as preparing and submitting in hardcopy and electronically an integrated Baseline Review (IBR DRD PM-10).  Isn’t the IBR a face-to-face review with the customer, DCMA, and contractor – normally scheduled 90-150 days after ATP at contractor site? 

· Answer:   PM-02 is the monthly status report that covers data that is presented to the HST Project Management (content to be covered is listed in Attachment D (DRD) 4.1.2).  The Monthly CPR (DRD PM-09) is a report that contains formal earned value data in accordance with Clause 1852.242-75, Earned Value Management System (Mar 1999).    Yes, the IBR is a face-to-face but there should be an electronic copy submitted prior to the face-to-face meeting.

37.  Volume III – Questionnaires are stated to be returned to Goddard by the proposal due date (which is understood to be July 16).  Are the questionnaires due July 2 or July 16? 

· Answer:  Questionnaires are due by July 2, 2004.

38.  Is there a preferred format for DRD PM-02 (reference SOW Project Management 1.0) 

· Answer:   No.  

39.  Is the IBR a face-to-face review as well as a data package  (reference SOW Project Management 1.0)? 

· Answer:   Yes

40. PM-02, PM-09, PM-100 – are these due monthly, ten working days after close of accounting period 

· Answer:   Yes

41. Attachment A Section/Paragraph: 8.3.2 - para 2, “The contractor shall design, fabricate, test and deliver a thermal-mechanical DM simulator”. What is the desired end usage of this simulator, especially with respect to thermal? Does this item need to be vacuum compatible? 

· Answer:  The simulator is used for EM thermal vacuum testing and it must be vacuum compatible.

42. HRVDM and HDV. SOW and DILS,  Section/Paragraph: SOW 7.2 and DILS SW-01 and SW-02 - HRDVM SOW para 7.2 requests SW-01, Software Management Plan, and SW-02, Software Delivery and Operations Transition Plan to be submitted with the proposal. However, DILS items SW-01 and SW-02 states these documents are due on contract award + 10 days. Which is correct? 

· Answer:  See response to question no. 16.

43. The Cost spreadsheets are not fully consistent with the WBS. Where a conflict exists, we assume the WBS prevails (e.g., WBS item 3.4, Communications, is not included in the spreadsheet). Is this the appropriate order of precedence? 

· Answer:  Yes.  See response to questions no. 34 & 35.

44. Exhibit 4: Contract Year 1, Year 2, Year 3, etc. Please clarify the “contract year" (I.e. Jan-Dec or Oct-Sep)

· Answer:  Offerors should assume a start date for this effort of October 1, 2004.  Therefore, the contract year is October 1, 2004 thru September 30, 2005.

45. Exhibit 8 Reserved.  Question:
Can we use this exhibit for others such as travel? 

· Answer:  A travel exhibit is not required; however, if provided, the information will be evaluated.  

46.  Exhibit 11 contains proprietary information regarding rates. Subcontractors may not be willing to submit directly to prime. Question: Can they submit summary information to prime (by WBS) and submit the more detailed Exhibit 11 directly to the government by the submittal date of July 16? 

· Answer:  Yes, however, offerors shall ensure consistency between the direct submission by a Subcontractor and the summary information included in the Prime's proposal.  

47. Requirement 6.3.3.6.4 states that the necessary command and control functions for the arm shall reside in the DM. Is the contractor required to develop the closed-loop autonomous control of the arm or is the contractor required to provide the avionics processor and interfaces to accommodate the GFE provided autonomous control software? 

· Answer:  The HRVDM contractor is not required to develop the closed-loop autonomous control of the arm. The HRVDM contractor is not required to provide the avionics processor associated with controlling the arm. The HRVDM contractor is required to provide the mechanical interfaces for the arm and its avionics (housed in the EM), and the interfaces to the avionics to enable commanding from the ground to reach the processors.

48. Is Exhibit 11 required for all subcontractors, or just those subcontractors over $10M? 

· Answer:  A Separate Exhibit 11 - Work Breakdown Structure should be prepared for each subcontractor performing effort related to the identified WBS elements.  Offerors should identify each Exhibit 11 submission by including the name of the prime or subcontractor at the top of the exhibit.  
49. Could we assume that the delivery requirements for the Data Items in Attachment E, Mission Assurance Requirements, are the same as the Data Items in Attachment C, Deliverable Item List and Schedule? (Many delivery requirements are not specified for the Data Items in Attachment E.) 

· Answer:  Yes.

50. HRVDM and HDV Supplemental Sections L and NPG - Section/Paragraph: Sects. L, Tab D, and NPG 8715.3, Appendix H  - Supplemental Sections L, Proposal Instructions, Subfactor D, require the offeror to submit a Safety and Health Plan with the proposal IAW NPG 8715.3, Appendix H. Appendix H, para 1.2 and 1.8 require the offer to discuss the status of many of the elements of its safety program using the Performance Evaluation Profile (PEP).  The PEP is not provided. 

· Answer:  Information on the Performance Evaluation Profile can be found on the web at http://safety1st.gsfc.nasa.gov/safetyres.html
51. HRVDM /HDV Attach E and Supplemental Sects L for HRVDM and HDV - Section/Paragraph: DID 1-1 and 2-1 HRVDM Sect L, Subfactor C: HDV Sect L Subfactor B  - Supplemental Sections L, Proposal Instructions, requires a Mission Assurance Plan be submitted with the proposal IAW DID 1-1, provided in Sect 19.1 of Attachment E. The DID, however, requests the Mission Assurance Plan be provided “during the development phase for GSFC review.” Also, DID 2-1 for the Quality Plan, provided in Attach E, Sect 19.3, requests the Quality Plan be submitted with the proposal.   Should both the Mission Assurance Plan and the Quality Plan be submitted with the proposal? 

· Answer:  Only the Mission Assurance Plan is to be delivered with the proposal.  The Quality plan shall be delivered 10 days after contract award.  An amendment to the RFP will be issued to reflect the above. 

52. The schedule for the HDV to GSFC is March 2007.  If a training simulator is provided can the flight HDV be shipped to the launch site in September 2007?

· Answer:  No.  The HDV schedule is the same as the HDVRM.

53. Is it a reasonable assumption that the TDRS antenna is stowed?

· Answer:  Yes, unless a failure precludes this.

54. Is it a reasonable assumption that solar paddle is kept parallel to the main body? 

· Answer:  Yes, unless a failure precludes this.

55. How much is the stability when the control is intentionally off during capture?

· Answer:  Must meet the 0.22 deg/sec tumble rate as per the requirements documents.

56. Is a foreign launch vehicle such as H-IIA by JAXA be considered to carry the HRVDM or HDV.

· The use of a foreign launch vehicle must be coordinated and approved through NASA HQ/Code I prior to proposal.

57. Is the Government going to make data from the existing Government payload rendezvous projects available for bidders for evaluation for use in their proposal solutions?

· No.  We do not have any relevant data available at this time.

58. Requirements HRVDM 4.1.5.  Communications requires real time video transmission thru HGA to TDRSS.  Will high definition video be required? Are the cameras provided as GFE as part of EM package?

· Answer:  Any video required to satisfy the mission located on the DM is the responsibility of the contractor, any video on the EM is the Government responsibility.

59. Will the EM require COMM Command & Control after ejection, if so will this be GFE.

· Answer:  Yes, any EM systems required after ejection will be the Government’s responsibility.

60. HDV requires TRL 6 at proposal submittal vs HRVDM at PDR yet both have same delivery schedule.  Can both programs be TRL 6 at PDR?

· Answer:  Yes.  An amendment to the RFP will be issued to reflect the above. 

61. Materials seem to indicate the Government desires telemetry be in CCSDS packets.  This does not seem to be clear in the RFP.  Is there a clear preference for CCSDS packets, or is this something the contractor is free to determine?

· Answer:  Contractor is free to determine, but should be in accordance with SOW section 13.2 and 13.3.

62. The SOW mentions the C&DH in sections 3 and B, but not the C&DH software in section 6.  Is this an omission from section 6? Or is the C&DH software GFE?

· Answer:  The C&DH S/W is not GFE.  Section 6 is the Guidance Navigation and Control.  All imbedded Guidance & Navigation Software is Contractor furnished. Section 7 covers all DM S/W, which is Contractor Furnished.

63. The requirement for delivery to GSFC for I &T is the same for the HRVDM and HDV, yet mission level I&T for the HDV is significantly less.  Can schedule be relaxed for the HDV?

· Answer: No.

64. In the RFP, WBS levels are defined as 0.0 (HRVDM) – Level 0;  1.0 (Systems) – Level 1; 1.1 (Subsystems) – Level 2; 1.1.1 (Box/Item) = Level 3; Level 1.1.1.4 (Components) – Level 4.  With regard to the 50 pages BOE page limit, can BOE’s be written above level 4 where appropriate?

· No.  BOE’s must be written to level 4 where appropriate.

65. Who is the Source Selection Official?

· Answer:  GSFC’s Director of Flight Projects/Code 400.

66. Who is on each of the 2 SEBs?

· Names will not be released at this time, but will be taken into consideration and if possible will be posted on the website.  Both SEBs are comprised of civil servants only; no contractor personnel are involved in the evaluation of proposals.

